
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Meeting, Thursday, 3rd October, 2019
   at 2.00 pm (Drawing Room)

A G E N D A
PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  



6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 5th September, 2019.

3 - 12

FOR DECISION 

(D) 7.  Hackney Fare Review 
 

13 - 36

(D) 8.  Delegated Decisions August 2019 
 

37 - 38

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

Membership of Committee

Councillors Assouad
Barlow
Biggins
Callister (Chairman)
Gawne
Hall
Maddox
R. McClure
McEwan
Mcleavy
Seward (Vice-Chair)
Wall

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:
Sharron Rushton
Democratic Services Officer
01229 876321
srushton@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Wednesday, 25th September 2019



BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday 5th September, 2019
at 2.00 pm. (Drawing Room)

PRESENT:- Councillors Callister (Chairman), Seward (Vice-Chairman), Assouad, 
Barlow, Biggins, Gawne, Hall, McEwan, McLeavy and Wall.

Barrow Borough Council

Graham Barker (Public Protection Manager), Ivor Churcher (Commercial Team 
Leader), Jon Huck (Monitoring Officer) and Sharron Rushton (Democratic Services 
Officer).

Others

Paul O’Donnell (Local Authority Retained Solicitor)
Dr Matthew Brash (Retained Veterinary Consultant – DEFRA Inspector)

Cumbria Zoo Co Ltd (for Agenda Item 9 only)

Karen Brewer (Chief Executive Officer), Sarah Swarbrick (Legal Representative), 
Stewart Lambert (Chair, Board of Directors), Kim Banks (Deputy Animal Department 
Manager) and another representative.

14 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 27th June, 2019 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

15 – Licensing Delegated Decisions (March - July 2019)

This Public Protection Manager reported that at the Licensing Regulatory Committee 
meeting on 7th March, 2019, Members had approved amendments to the Public 
Protection Manager’s delegated powers and required that the Public Protection 
Manager submitted, every 14 days, starting  the date of the Committee meeting, all 
records of decisions made pursuant to those delegations to the following persons for 
review:-

(a) Assistant Director - Regeneration and Built Environment;
(b) Principal Legal Officer; and
(c) Chair of Licensing Regulatory Committee.

A review would take place after 3 months to ascertain if monthly submissions would 
be acceptable.

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



The Public Protection Manager confirmed that this system of review had been 
implemented and that a fortnightly decision document had been submitted in 
accordance with the Minute.

A summary of the delegated decisions made between 8th March, 2019 and 31st July 
2019, including those already reviewed by the Assistant Director - Regeneration and 
Built Environment, Principal Legal Officer and the Chair of Licensing Regulatory 
Committee, up until 11th July, 2019 was summarised in the report.

The Public Protection Manager proposed that a review should now be undertaken of 
the ongoing reporting requirement and suggested that a three monthly report was 
prepared for this Committee, summarising the number of delegated decisions.  Any 
decisions where personal / confidential matters were considered would be reported 
as a Part Two item. 

If acceptable, the Public Protection Manager also proposed that the schedule of 
reports would commence in December 2019, and continue in March 2020, June 
2020 and every three months thereafter.

It was moved by Councillor Barlow and seconded by Councillor McEwan to continue 
to submit all records of decisions made pursuant to delegated powers on a monthly 
basis to the Assistant Director - Regeneration and Built and Environment, Principal 
Legal Officer and Chair of Licensing Regulatory Committee and a report be 
presented to all Licensing Regulatory Committees.

RESOLVED:- (i) That the Public Protection Manager continued to submit all records 
of decisions made pursuant to delegated powers on a monthly basis to the Assistant 
Director - Regeneration and Built and Environment, Principal Legal Officer and Chair 
of Licensing Regulatory Committee; and 

(ii) That the Public Protection Manager report Licensing Regulatory delegated 
decisions to all Licensing Regulatory Committees.

16 – Working Group Update

The Commercial Team Leader reported on 27th June 2019, the Licensing 
Regulatory Committee recommended that a Working Group with Officers, Members 
and the Taxi and Private Hire Trade be set up to discuss disability provision. 

This Working Group was to be chaired by Councillor Callister and the remit of the 
Group was limited to discussion regarding the disability provision.

The Public Protection Manager sent out invitations on behalf of the Chair.

On 9th August, 2019 members of the Working Group discussed the topic of disability 
provision and concluded that at present there was enough provision within the 
Borough.

This conclusion was based on the fact that members of the Working Group who had 
wheelchair accessible vehicles stated that their vehicles were underused and that a 

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



local company specialising in transportation of disabled passengers were meeting 
current demand.  There had been no contact with other stakeholders such as Barrow 
and District Disability Association.

Further weight was given to this as one member of the Working Group stated that 
the Council had in 2015 conducted an Unmet Demand Survey.  This survey did not 
look specifically at the provision of wheelchair accessible vehicles or disability and 
focussed on provision of Hackney Carriage Vehicles within the Borough. The report 
from the survey stated: “No issues were raised on behalf of elderly users, mobility 
impaired users or minority groups.” 

During the meeting a member of the Working Group introduced a list containing 
several issues for discussion.  Although these issues were discussed at length, they 
related to operational issues which would normally be dealt with through the Taxi 
Liaison Group meetings. It was Officers’ views that this was the more appropriate 
forum for current issues to be raised.  Working Groups were tasked with targeted, 
specific and limited pieces of work which were often part of a predefined work plan.

A copy of the Minutes from the Working Group meeting were attached as an 
appendix to the report.

The report also asked Members to consider approving new work area(s) for the 
Working Group.

Councillor Callister had requested that the Group look at issues around the number 
of tariffs allowed on the meter.

RESOLVED:- 

1. That Members considered the findings of the Working Group in relation to the 
provision of wheel chair accessible vehicles within the Hackney and Private Hire 
trade within the Borough;

2. Considered that whether sufficient work had been undertaken to arrive at the 
Working Group’s conclusions;

3. To expand the work programme of the Working Group; and

4. To approve Councillor Callister’s request that the Taxi Working Group look at the 
position relating to metered tariffs and report its conclusions back to Licensing 
Regulatory Committee. 

17 – Zoo Inspection Reports 2019 - Cumbria Zoo Company Limited (CZCL) 
Zoo Licensing Act 1981 (as amended) 
Zoo Licence – Cumbria Zoo Company Limited

The Public Protection Manager reported that Cumbria Zoo Company Limited (CZCL) 
held a Zoo Licence issued on 11th May 2017 to operate a Zoo at premises known as 
South Lakes Safari Zoo (“the Zoo”), Melton Terrace, Lindal-in-Furness, Cumbria, 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



LA12 0LU. This was an ‘Original’ Zoo licence and therefore it would last for a period 
of four years.

Section 11(1)(d) of the Act enabled the Local Authority to carry out special 
inspections of a Zoo for which a licence granted by them was in force if they 
considered it appropriate to do so having regard to any other circumstances which in 
their opinion called for investigation.

Section 12(1) of the Act allowed for an informal inspection to be carried out once in 
any calendar year but only where no other inspection type was due or anticipated i.e. 
periodical (Section 10) or special inspections (Section 11).

To provide confidence to Officers and Members of the Licensing Regulatory 
Committee, that the Zoo was compliant with its licence, the Act and guidance, the 
Council wrote to CZCL on 27th October, 2017, requesting their consent for the 
Council to undertake unannounced inspections, during their first year of operation. In 
an email dated 29th October, 2017, Mr Andreas Kauffmann responded on behalf of 
CZCL, stating it would be absolutely fine with unannounced inspections. A copy of 
this correspondence was attached as an appendix to the report.

The Zoo was inspected on 7th January, 2019 and 17th May, 2019 and revisited on 
31st July, 2019. 

Observations and reports from these inspections were included in detail within the 
report.  

The annual informal inspection was undertaken on 17th May, 2019 and the 
inspection team consisted of:-

The Local Authority appointed inspectors (Section 10(4)(a)(i) comprised of:

Dr Matthew Brash B.Vet.Med Cert Zoo Med MRCVS (the Council’s Professional 
Veterinary Advisor);
Graham Barker (Public Protection Manager); and
Ivor Churcher (Commercial Team Leader)

Section 10(4)(c) allowed for representatives of the operator [CZCL] (not exceeding a 
total of 3 persons) to accompany the inspectors on the inspection.  In addition the 
inspectors may require the presence of a veterinary surgeon or practitioner 
employed or retained by the Zoo.

CZCL representatives were:-

Karen Brewer, CEO;
David Armitage, Animal Department Manager;
Kim Banks, Deputy Animal Department Manager; and
Karen Archer MRCVS.

David Armitage and Kim Banks accompanied the inspection team during the 
inspection.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



The report produced by Dr Matthew Brash following the Annual Informal Inspection 
on 17th May, 2019 was attached as an appendix to the report.

Dr Matthew Brash’s overview was that on the whole the Zoo continued to make good 
progress. Over winter a major overhaul of the Maki restaurant had been undertaken, 
with new catering equipment etc. being installed. The shop at the front of the Zoo 
had also been renovated.

In the Zoo itself there were a number of projects of maintenance being undertaken 
for the animal exhibits. The outdoor area for the older giraffe house was being 
renovated; a new Nyala enclosure had been built; many indoor houses had been 
successfully renovated; including the big houses, the lemur houses, and the tapir 
house. The maned wolf enclosure was also in the process of being completely 
redeveloped.

Diets were being reviewed, with new diet sheets being printed out in blue, clearly 
showing that approximately half of the diets had been reassessed. The level of 
veterinary care continued to be high with regular weekly veterinary visits by the 
veterinary surgeon. An annual audit and review of pathological and clinical records 
had been undertaken. Conservation and education continued to be developed, 
although these were not looked at in detail.

However, despite the obvious investments being made to the animal environments 
some areas had fallen below the standards required by the ZLA Act or the SSSMZP. 

Many of these were minor and easily resolved, however of greater concern was the 
record keeping and the pest control.

Dr Brash had included recommended Conditions within his report including:-

1. Safety lines in the big cat houses;

2. Freezers labelled with Meat By-Products;

3. Handwashing facilities in the Illescas aviary;

4. Prevention of pests;

Dr Brash had also recommended a number of Directions regarding:-

1. Ventilation in Animal Houses (meat kitchens, tambopata aviary, giraffe house 
and veterinary hospital);

2. Vegetation over-growing the tiger enclosure fencing;

3. Squirrel Monkey enclosure;

4. ZIMS and records; and

5. The pool In the Illescas aviary.

On 20th May, 2019 Karen Brewer emailed CZCL’s initial response to the inspection 
findings, details of which were repeated in CZCL’s formal representation which had 
been received on 15th July, 2019. Their correspondence also provided an update 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



regarding on-going developments at the Zoo. The content was reproduced in full in 
the report. 

Referring to the recommended Conditions this included:-

1. Safety lines had been freshly painted in all the cat houses;

2. Freezers had all been re-labelled as per new regulations;

3. Handwashing facilities in the Illescas aviary were available;

4. Prevention of pests was recorded correctly;

Referring to the recommended Directions, this included:-

1. Works to improve ventilation had taken place over the last 2 years in all the 
houses (meat kitchens, tambopata aviary, giraffe house and veterinary hospital) 
and a number of the areas were in the redevelopment works which would take 
place over the next 12 months;

2. All the cat fences, not just tigers had been fully trimmed and all growth removed 
from the external part of the overhang - where the hotwires were;

3. The squirrel monkey netting was branch free;

4. CZCL had re-instigated the original recording system designed by a previous 
employee.  Staff had either attended a training session or received a training 
document to help them with the content.

5. The pool in the Illescas aviary had been emptied until the pump repaired and 
replaced.

During the past 8 months Council Officers and Dr Matthew Brash had inspected 
South Lakes Safari Zoo (SLSZ) on 7th January, 2019, 17th May, 2019 and 31st July, 
2019.

From the 7th January, 2019 inspection, a review of Animal Bites (Condition 14) had 
been submitted on 1st April, 2019 which was attached as an appendix to the report.

A recent review of the Firearms Protocol had been undertaken with Cumbria 
Constabulary and there had been no revisions to the protocol.

The reporting officer had sought the opinion of Dr Brash on the action taken by 
CZCL in response to the inspection.  In his response he stated:-

‘The following recommended conditions appear to have been complied with, as 
documented by photographic evidence;

1. Safety lines in the big cat houses; and

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



 
2. Meat By-Products

The following two recommended conditions do not appear to have been complied 
with, and so should go onto the licence;

3. Hand-washing facilities in the Illescas aviary; and

4. Prevention of pests. 

The following were recommended directions; it was noted that Directions do not go 
on the licence;

1. Ventilation in Animal Houses (meat kitchen, tambopata aviary, giraffe house and 
veterinary hospital)

2. Vegetation over-growing the tiger enclosure fencing;

3. Squirrel Monkey enclosure;

4. ZIMS and records;

5. The pool In the Illescas aviary was now working and provided this was verified, 
then this did not need to be enforced.

On 31st July, 2019 the reporting officer re-visited the Zoo to ascertain the current 
status of the outstanding matters. The inspection notes and photographs were 
included in the report. 

Referring to the recommended Conditions, this included:-

3. Hand washing facilities in the Illescas Aviary: Visit confirmed that hot water was 
now available at the wash station within the Illescas Aviary;

4. Prevention of Pests: During a Health & Safety visit to the Zoo on 6th June, 2019 
it was confirmed that staff members had now been retrained in correct baiting 
techniques. Additional checks had been put in place to ensure that there were no 
health & safety or potential animal poisoning issues. A walk round on 31st July, 
2019 confirmed that satisfactory measures were now in place for the treating of 
pests;

Referring to the recommended Directions, this included:-

1. Ventilation in Animal Houses (meat kitchen, tambopata aviary, giraffe house and 
veterinary hospital): It was confirmed that additional ventilation had been 
provided in several of the animal houses.

Ventilation at present was mainly by natural means as several of the animal 
enclosures now had additional windows and mesh screen doors.  

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



The Giraffe House had been provided with mesh windows at lower and upper 
levels within the house. This was only a short term fix as the Giraffe House was 
due for refurbishment.

The refurbishment/development of the Giraffe House was due to start later on 
this year.

It was advised that permanent ventilation would be provided, although no definite 
timescale was provided.

4. Stock Records: The issue surrounding the adequacy of the animal records was 
highlighted by Dr Brash during the 17th May 2019 inspection.

The Zoo had not been using the ZIMS System to log information re: diet, illness, 
behavioural changes etc. and was using daily diaries to record such issues. 
Many of the diaries were incomplete and actions noted were either not recorded 
in enough detail or followed up. Karen Brewer had advised that they had 
reverted back to a recording system originally designed for them by a previous 
advisor.

Discussion confirmed that the only back up for these records was on PC hard 
drive in medical area.

It had also been advised that backlog of records had not been addressed since 
the 17th May 2019 inspection and that no uploads had been made to ZIMS, the 
backlog increasing each day.

Cumbria Zoo Co Ltd had been invited to today’s hearing and had addressed the 
Committee through their Chief Executive Karen Brewer; Chairman Stuart Lambert 
and Retained Lawyer Sarah Swarbrick. 

The Zoo provided the Committee with reassurances that they were working hard to 
ensure a high level of animal husbandry at the Zoo. They explained a willingness to 
utilise the ZIMS recording system in the long term having secured online access 
following payment of subscriptions a few days prior to the hearing. They explained 
that they had a team of 7 or 8 people working on updating the backlog of data which 
had not been inputted whilst access to ZIMS was suspended; the reason for non-
payment of the subscription being explained as a budgetary decision following 
legacy financial pressures incurred whilst transitioning the running of the Zoo to the 
new operating company. 

The Zoo explained that improving ventilation had been a challenge working with the 
design specifications and enclosure design of the previous operator. A number of 
holes had been cut into buildings to aid the flow of air but longer term solutions 
would be needed and incorporated into future redesigns and construction of 
enclosures.

Dr Brash explained to the Committee that a large zoo such as this Zoo which was 
participating in the EEP (the European Endangered Species Programme) should be 
uploading its records as required onto ZIMS. He accepted that other methods were 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



possible in order to discharge Section 9 of SSSMZP requirements, but was of the 
professional view that due to the number and variety of species kept at the Zoo, an 
online record such as ZIMS was essential to enabled access; transparency and 
research access to the Zoo’s collection.

Dr Brash was unable to comment on whether the Zoo’s attempts to improve 
ventilation would work. Simply creating holes in enclosures led to the possibility that 
minimum temperature regulation (especially over winter) may be adversely affected. 
On balance, he was prepared to defer responsibility for certifying that ventilation and 
temperature was within acceptable ranges to the Collection Vet.   

RESOLVED:-

1. To note the report;

2. To arrange a special inspection in 8 weeks time to inspect the record keeping 
and ensure that the correct record keeping had been implemented; and

3. Request a letter from CZCL’s Collection Vet within 3 weeks to confirm the 
ventilation in the four areas, namely: meat kitchen, tambopata aviary, giraffe 
house and veterinary hospital was suitable for animals throughout the whole of 
the year.

The meeting closed at 4.50 pm.

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



  Part One

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 3rd October, 2019

Reporting Officer:  Licensing Officer

(D)

Title: Hackney Carriage Fare Review

Summary and Conclusions: 

Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
provides that a district council may fix the rates or fares within the district as 
well for time and distance, and all other charges in connection with the hire of 
a vehicle or with the arrangements for the hire of a vehicle, to be paid in 
respect of the hire of hackney carriages by means of a table (a “table of 
fares”) made or varied in accordance with the provisions of this section.

This report requires members to consider the responses from the trade and 
also adding a booking fee to the table of fares.

Recommendations: 

Approve no increase in the tariff; however update the table of fares to include 
the provision of a booking fee, capped at £3.50, and to review the fares 
annually. To also instruct Officers to publish a NOTICE of variation in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 65 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, to allow for a booking fee to be included 
within the table of fares.

Report

1. Introduction

1.1 Section 65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976 (“the Act”) provides that a district council may fix the rates or fares 
within the district as well for time and distance, and all other charges in 
connection with the hire of a vehicle or with the arrangements for the hire 
of a vehicle, to be paid in respect of the hire of hackney carriages by 
means of a table (a “table of fares”) made or varied in accordance with 
the provisions of this section. This section applies only to Hackney 
Carriage vehicles. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



2. Procedure

2.1 If the Council decides to vary the rates or fares, it must place a notice in 
a local newspaper. This must set out the table of fares and specify a 
period of at least 14 days in which objections to the table of fares or 
variation can be made. In addition, a copy must be made available for 
inspection at the Council’s offices for the same period. 

2.2 If no objections are made to the table of fares or variation within the 
period specified in the notice or if all objections are withdrawn, the table 
of fares comes into operation on the date specified in the notice or the 
date of withdrawal of the objection or, if more than one objection is 
received, the date of the last objection was withdrawn, whichever date is 
the later. 

2.3  If objections are received and not withdrawn, the Council must consider 
those objections and specify a date, not later than two months after the 
date specified in the notice, on which the table of fares shall come into 
force, with or without modifications as decided by the Committee. 

2.4 At its meeting of the 21st June, 2012, the Licensing Committee, 
approved an increase in the Hackney Carriage Fare and resolved that 
these fares would be reviewed annually. Historically, this review has 
been instigated by the Hackney Carriage trade however a review has not 
taken place since 2016. Following the 2016 review, members resolved 
the following at a Licensing Committee meeting on 21st July 2016:

Committee decision:

a) That the methodology used to determine any future increase in 
Hackney Carriage fares be approved; and

b) That no increase in tariff for 2016/17 be agreed. 

Reasons for decision:

 The methodology used robust statistics from the Office for National 
Statistics (ONS), to show the real cost to the Hackney Carriage trade of 
running and licensing a vehicle.

 The duty placed on the local authority to fix or vary the fares, was a 
permissive power. 

 The cost to the Hackney Carriage trade in changing the tariffs on their 
meters, was disproportionate to the fare increase.

 There were likely to be objections to the fare increase from the Hackney 
Carriage trade, requiring a further review and consultation.

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



 Reasons for not adopting other available options:

The Committee accepted that the Hackney Carriage Drivers knew their trade 
and from the responses received, none of them wanted an increase in fares, 
therefore, the Committee agreed that there were no reasons to adopt other 
available options.

2.5 At our last taxi liaison meeting held on 18th March 2019 the Reporting 
Officer assured the Hackney Carriage representatives that a review of 
the Hackney Carriage Fares (Tariff), would take place this year.

3. Methodology

3.1 The new methodology, which was approved by Licensing Committee on 
21st July 2016, calculates the real costs of running a Hackney Carriage, 
and compares that to the national average. This is then used to 
determine any percentage increase.

3.2 The retail price index (RPI) in relation to transport costs and wages is 
used to demonstrate ‘how much’ owning and running a vehicle has gone 
up / down (known as the variance), since the last review in 2016. The 
following cost areas will be reviewed individually, and used to calculate a 
% increase/decrease: 

The costs of:
 Purchase of Vehicle
 Vehicle Maintenance
 Petrol & Oil
 Tax & Insurance
 Wages
 Licensing Fees Cost

4. Consultation

4.1 On 22nd July 2019 all hackney carriage vehicle proprietors and drivers 
(172 in total) were sent a letter informing them about the review and 
requesting their views on whether they support an increase, and the 
“weighting” that they would apply to each of the above costs.  i.e. how 
important or significant, the trade think the costs in each of the areas 
affect them. 

4.2 Copies of the consultation letters returned are attached at Appendix 1. 

4.3 In total, five letters were returned, all supporting a fare increase.

4.4 Two further responses were received which are copied below.

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



4.5 The Chair of the Furness Taxi Trade Association responded on 30th July 
2019: 

We would also like to request that the rank rate increase is put on hold 
for the time-being. This was voted on during our drivers meeting this 
evening. 

4.6 Feedback from the consultation has also been received from a new 
Private Hire Operator, UBARO, on 5th August 2019:

I’m writing to request that a booking fee is added into the table of fares 
when they are under review for Hackney’s.

Having looked at a number of other areas across the country, Barrow BC 
are the only authority that do not seem to have the requested booking 
fee currently in operation.

Lancaster, for example are one of the aforementioned areas and below 
is a screenshot of their fare card that outlines their Booking Fee and 
conditions:

Having liaised with you and Graham on several occasions regarding the 
set-up of our new company UBARO, we are reliant on this booking fee 
coming into operation as soon as possible so that our planned financial 
model can be followed. Initially this was not an issue, but as a result of 
the vast majority of standard firms moving in-line with rank-rate, we can 
now only match that rate rather than exceed it which is a key issue for 
us.

We will be launched within the next seven days as it is, but we will be 
running at a loss to comply with the current rules and offer our real USP.

5. Post-Consultation

5.1 Following responses received, an average of the weightings put forward 
by the trade were applied to each of the cost areas as outlined above.

5.2 The overall increase in costs, since the last review, associated with 
running a Hackney Carriage is 16.17%. Attached at Appendix 2 is a 
table showing the individually calculated variances and percentage 
increase. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



5.3 This increase equates to approximately £0.40 on the starting price (Flag 
on the Normal Tariff) raising it to £2.80. This will automatically increase 
the starting price for: 
T2 (hiring’s begun between midnight and 7.00 a.m.) to £4.20 and 
T3 (hiring’s on all bank holidays, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve) to 
£5.60.

5.4 On 12th August 2019, the findings of the review were fed back to those 
who had responded to the review, via email. Of the responses that were 
received, none were in support of the tariff being increased. The 
Secretary of the Furness Taxi Trade replied on 12 August 2019 to say:

I would like to make you aware of the recent taxi trade liaison meeting on 
9th August. 
The hackney fares were discussed and we were told that only seven 
replies were received.
 It was explained that at a drivers meeting 71 drivers voted to postpone 
the review until the same time next year. The reason for this is that 
operators have recently agreed to raise fares to the same level as the 
hackney rate.
It was agreed at the meeting that a further rise would cause public 
confusion and would be counterproductive. The idea in the trade is for 
the operators to follow the hackney prices as and when they change. 
Obviously, we do not want a change this soon after getting the 
operator's agreement to match the hackney rates. We have fought long 
and hard for this agreement and do not wish to see it jeopardised at this 
late stage.

Regards

Secretary
Furness Taxi Trade Association

5.5 The Furness Taxi Trade Association represents the views of both the 
hackney carriage and private hire trade. Members will need to consider 
that the fares are in relation to hackney carriages only, and some of the 
trade response will be formed with influence from those who represent 
hackney and private hire.

It is not known the exact split of hackney and private hire drivers within 
the Association; however the Association have recently stated that it 
represents approximately 126 drivers in total.

It is not known what proportion of the 71 drivers who voted to postpone 
the review are from the hackney carriage trade, however the Furness 
Taxi Trade Association have estimated it was around 80%. The split of 
the vote is also not known. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



For members information, the Council currently have a total of 283 
licensed drivers. In terms of driver licence holders, 96 are hackney only, 
120 private hire only and 53 who hold both a hackney and private hire 
licence (known as a dual licence). There is also an additional 14 who 
hold separate private hire and hackney licences (as dual wasn’t 
available at the time of applying).

5.6 It is understood the Furness Taxi Trade Association have recently 
reached an agreement with some local Private Hire Operators to match 
the hackney rates. This is something that the Council cannot support or 
be in agreement with, as fares charged by Private Hire Operators, for 
private hire vehicles, are not regulated by the Council.

6. Comparison of Fares

6.1 For Members information our current Table of Fares is given below:

Normal Fare (7am until midnight)
If the distance does not exceed 805 metres (5/10 mile) for the whole distance £2.40
If the distance exceeds 805 metres (5/10 mile) for each subsequent 161 metres
(1/10 of a mile) or uncompleted part £0.20
Waiting time – for each 30 seconds £0.10

For hirings begun between midnight and 7.00 a.m.
If the distance does not exceed 805 metres (5/10 mile) for the whole distance £3.60
If the distance exceeds 805 metres (5/10 mile) for each subsequent 161
metres (1/10 of a mile) or uncompleted part £0.30
Waiting time – for each 30 seconds £0.15

For hirings on all bank holidays, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve
If the distance does not exceed 805 metres (5/10 mile) for the whole distance £4.80
If the distance exceeds 805 metres (5/10 mile) for each subsequent 161 metres
(1/10 of a mile) or uncompleted part £0.40
Waiting time for each 30 seconds £0.20

Soiling charge - £10 outside/maximum £100 inside
Payment of estimate may be required as deposit at start of journey
Extra charge of £0.20 per person over two people.

6.2 For direct comparison the following table below shows the fares for our 
neighbouring Councils and the National average. Barrow Borough 
Council fares are comparable with the average of our neighbours and 
National Average for a 2 mile journey during the day. 

Fares as at 
August 2019 

T1 @ 2 miles 
(£) 

South Lakes DC 6.40 
National Average 5.92 
Carlisle City 5.80 

Page 18

Agenda Item 7



Local Area Average 5.60 
Lancaster City 5.60 
Eden DC 5.50 
Allerdale BC 5.45 
Barrow BC 5.44 
Copeland BC 5.00 

6.3 For Members information, the previous increase in 2012 saw a rise of 
21.4% on the 1 mile fare and 17.4% on the 2 mile fare. 

7. Officers Report

7.1 Section 65 of the 1976 Act provides that Council’s may also fix other 
charges with the connection of hiring a vehicle. For example, the Council 
currently caps a soiling charge at £100.

7.2 During the consultation, a request was received from a new Private Hire 
Operator, UBARO, to authorise a booking fee to be charged in relation to 
the hiring of a vehicle.

7.3 Although hackney carriages can work on the rank or be hailed in the 
street, a high number of hackneys in the Borough work for a Private Hire 
Operator.

7.4 UBARO intends to be an app based operator and all bookings and 
hirings from their customers will be through the app. UBARO would like 
to charge customers a booking fee for using the app, however this is 
currently not authorised by the Council in the table of fares. 

7.5 Many other Councils have included provision for a booking fee in their 
table of fares, Lancaster City Council being the nearest neighbouring 
authority.

7.6 At the Taxi Working Group held on 9th August 2019, including a booking 
fee being included in the table of fares was discussed and minuted as:

The majority agreed that introducing booking fees would be 
beneficial to them as drivers.  This led to a discussion on other 
council fees like Lancaster.  It was discussed around the meeting 
that £3.50 was an idea but it hadn’t yet been discussed within the 
trade.

7.7 For members information, any booking fee is a maximum and the 
proprietor/operator has discretion as to whether they wish to charge it.

7.8 Members will be required to instruct officers to publish a NOTICE of 
variation in accordance with the provisions of Section 65 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 if they agree a 
booking fee should be included within the table of fares.

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



8. Options

The options available to Members are;

a) Approve no increase in the tariff, however update the table of fares 
to include the provision of a booking fee, capped at £3.50 (or 
another amount determined by members), and review the fares 
annually. To also instruct Officers to publish a NOTICE of variation 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 65 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. The proposed 
booking fee conditions are:
a) the Hackney Carriage is booked in advance; and
b)
(i) The customer shall be told the cost of the booking fee when the 
booking is made and the amount should be recorded; and
(ii) The customer shall be told that the booking fee is in addition to 
the fare for the journey.

b) Approve an increase of 16.17% to the Barrow Borough Council 
Table of Fares and instruct Officers to publish a NOTICE of 
variation in accordance with the provisions of Section 65 of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976;

c) Make no change to the table of fares, but for a review to take place 
annually.

9. Recommendation

It is recommended that members:-

Approve no increase in the tariff, however update the table of fares to 
include the provision of a booking fee, capped at £3.50, and review the 
fares annually. To also instruct Officers to publish a NOTICE of variation 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 65 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.
The proposed booking fee conditions are:

a) the Hackney Carriage is booked in advance; and
b)

(i) The customer shall be told the cost of the booking fee when the 
booking is made and the amount should be recorded; and
(ii) The customer shall be told that the booking fee is in addition to 
the fare for the journey.

A copy of the proposed fare table is copied below:

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



HACKNEY CARRIAGE PROPOSED FARE TABLE    
 
Normal Fare (7am until midnight)
If the distance does not exceed 805 metres (5/10 mile) for the whole distance £2.40
If the distance exceeds 805 metres (5/10 mile) for each subsequent 161 metres
(1/10 of a mile) or uncompleted part £0.20
Waiting time – for each 30 seconds £0.10
 
For hirings begun between midnight and 7.00 a.m.
If the distance does not exceed 805 metres (5/10 mile) for the whole distance £3.60
If the distance exceeds 805 metres (5/10 mile) for each subsequent 161
metres (1/10 of a mile) or uncompleted part £0.30
Waiting time – for each 30 seconds £0.15
 
For hirings on all bank holidays, Christmas Eve and New Years Eve
If the distance does not exceed 805 metres (5/10 mile) for the whole distance £4.80
If the distance exceeds 805 metres (5/10 mile) for each subsequent 161 metres
(1/10 of a mile) or uncompleted part £0.40
Waiting time for each 30 seconds £0.20
 
Additional Charges
Soiling charge: £10 outside / maximum £100 inside
A Booking Fee up to a maximum of £3.50 may be charged where:
a) the Hackney Carriage is booked in advance; and  
b) (i) The customer shall be told the cost of the booking fee
and the amount should be recorded; and    
(ii) The customer shall be told that the booking fee is in addition to the fare for the journey.
Extra charge of £0.20 per person over two people.
Payment of estimated fare may be required prior to the journey.

10. Reasons for Recommendation

a) The duty placed on the local authority to fix or vary the fares, is a 
permissive power;

b) Feedback from the trade suggests the majority are not in support of a 
fare increase, but would like to see a booking fee included within the 
table of fares;

c) It is beneficial to the public if the fares are not increased;

d) There are likely to be objections to any fare increase from the 
Hackney Carriage trade, requiring a further review and consultation;

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



e) App-based operators are becoming increasingly popular nationally 
and we are likely to see further applications for Operators licences of 
this type in the future. Most have a business model of charging a 
booking fee;

f)   Adding a booking fee to the table of fares allows the Council to 
regulate the amount customers are charged.

Considerations

(i) Legal Implications

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976  
Section 65 - Fixing of fares for hackney carriages.
(1) A district council may fix the rates or fares within the district as well 

for time as distance, and all other charges in connection with the 
hire of a vehicle or with the arrangements for the hire of a vehicle, 
to be paid in respect of the hire of hackney carriages by means of a 
table (hereafter in this section referred to as a “table of fares”) 
made or varied in accordance with the provisions of this section.

(2) (a) When a district council make or vary a table of fares they shall 
publish in at least one local newspaper circulating in the district a 
notice setting out the table of fares or the variation thereof and 
specifying the period, which shall not be less than fourteen days 
from the date of the first publication of the notice, within which and 
the manner in which objections to the table of fares or variation can 
be made.

 (b) A copy of the notice referred to in paragraph (a) of this 
subsection shall for the period of fourteen days from the date of the 
first publication thereof be deposited at the offices of the council 
which published the notice, and shall at all reasonable hours be 
open to public inspection without payment.

(3)  If no objection to a table of fares or variation is duly made within the 
period specified in the notice referred to in subsection (2) of this 
section, or if all objections so made are withdrawn, the table of 
fares or variation shall come into operation on the date of the 
expiration of the period specified in the notice or the date of 
withdrawal of the objection or, if more than one, of the last 
objection, whichever date is the later.

(4) If objection is duly made as aforesaid and is not withdrawn, the 
district council shall set a further date, not later than two months 
after the first specified date, on which the table of fares shall come 
into force with or without modifications as decided by them after 
consideration of the objections.

(5) A table of fares made or varied under this section shall have effect 
for the purposes of the Act of 1847 as if it were included in hackney 
carriage byelaws made thereunder.

Page 22

Agenda Item 7



(6) On the coming into operation of a table of fares made by a council 
under this section for the district, any hackney carriage byelaws 
fixing the rates and fares or any table of fares previously made 
under this section for the district, as the case may be, shall cease 
to have effect.

(7) Section 236(8) (except the words “when confirmed”) and section 
238 of the Local Government Act 1972 (except paragraphs (c) and 
(d) of that section) shall extend and apply to a table of fares made 
or varied under this section as they apply to byelaws made by a 
district council.

(ii) Risk Assessment

The recommendation has no, minor or significant implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

Any costs incurred from carrying out the provisions of Section 65 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, are recharged directly to 
the Hackney Carriage Vehicle proprietors and drivers, through their licensing 
fees.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no, minor or significant implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has little impact on the Health and Wellbeing of users of 
this service.

Background Papers

Nil 

Report Author

Katherine Benson

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 26

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 27

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 28

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 29

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 30

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 31

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 32

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 33

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 34

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



TAXI FARE REVIEW 2019

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Variance since 

last Review
Total

Retail Prices Index: 

transport components:  1

Data not 

available (Aug 

2019) Review + / - (Downward trend = -)

Purchase of Vehicle 69.0 68.2 68.2 66.7 65.0 65.3 1.52 -1.52 10 -15.18 

Maintenance 203.9 208.9 214.4 218.4 222.1 228.1 8.06 8.06 14 112.84

Petrol & Oil 220.3 218.2 207.7 180.23 175.3 189.8 17.78 -17.78 19 -337.89 

Tax & Insurance 270.8 273.4 280.3 293.2 339.8 400.6 46.78 46.78 15 683.03

Annual Weekly Earnings 2

Wages 461 466 471 482 493 505 520 20.11 20.11 31 631.32

Licensing Cost

231 289 306 306 344 346 401 49.35 49.35 11 542.85

100

Total % 16.17

tsgb1308

Average 

Weighting 

through 

consulation 

with Hackney 

Trade

(Badge / Plate / Test (x2) / Unmet 
Demand Survey

1. The RPI all motor index includes purchase of a vehicle, maintenance, petrol and oil and tax and insurance. Transport expenditure (Table 

TSGB1308): 

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/transport-expenditure-tsgb13

2. The level and growth rate of average weekly earnings

https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/earningsandworkinghours/timeseries/kab9

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 7
A

ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  Part One

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 3rd October, 2019

Reporting Officer:  Public Protection Manager

(D)

Title: Licensing Delegated Decisions (August 2019)

Summary and Conclusions: 

This report summarises the decisions made under Part 3(2), Section I of the 
Constitution, Scheme of Delegations to Officers with regard to the Councils 
Licensing functions.

Recommendations: 

That Members consider the summary of decisions.

Report

At its meeting of the 5th September 2019, Members requested a monthly 
report of the Public Protection Managers delegated decisions.

Below is a summary of the delegated decisions made between 1st August 
2019 and 5th September 2019 and include those already reviewed by the 
Assistant Director (Regeneration and Built Environment), Principal Legal 
Officer and the Chair of Licensing Regulatory Committee. 

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers Licences
(Granted / Renewed): 24

Suspended  (Licence Expired): 2
Suspended  (DBS Expired): 2

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Licences (Granted / 
Renewed inc’ Change of Vehicles and Transfers) 44

Suspended (Missed Vehicle Test): 7
Suspended (Licence Expired): 3

House to House / Pub to Pub Collections & Street Collections Permits 
(Granted): 5

Temporary Event Notices (Licensing Act 2003) (Acknowledged): 3

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



Considerations

(i) Legal Implications

There is a need to ensure that the policies and procedures for determining 
licences consistent and fair to avoid legal challenge. The decision must be 
taken in the interests of public safety and should be fair, reasonable, 
proportionate and in accordance with human rights and natural justice 
principles.

In particular, Sections 51(1) and 59(1) of the Local Government (Misc. 
Provisions) Act 1976 provides that the Council must assess whether 
individuals’ are suitable persons to hold a drivers’ licence be it hackney 
carriage or private hire.  

(ii) Risk Assessment

If the Council does not fulfil its licensing duties, it may be exposed to legal 
challenges.

(iii) Financial Implications

If a successful legal challenge is made against the Council, costs and  
compensation might be payable.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author: 

Graham Barker (Public Protection Manager)

Page 38

Agenda Item 8


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Hackney Fare Review
	Appendix 1 - Hackney Carriage Fare Review
	Appendix 2 - Hackney Carriage Fare Review

	8 Delegated Decisions August 2019

